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William Wilson Ashby House
Crellin
Private 1876-1877

The William Wilson Ashby House is significant because of its association
with the Ashby family, early settlers in Garrett County. It is also significant
as one of the few fine late 19th century brick houses in Garrett County.

The house, built between 1876 and 1877, is a brick, 2 story, 3 bay by 1
bay, classically influenced dwelling based on the ell-plan and has a hip-roof.
The main block measures 20 x 50 feet and the ell, 20 x 40 feet. The facade
faces east and has a central entrance.

One Hundred thousand bricks were used in the construction of the house.
The brick is laid in common bond.
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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE
The William Wilson Ashby House is located approximately 1 mile southwest of
Crellin, MD. The house is presently abandoned.

The house, built between 1876 and 1877, is a brick, 2 story, 3 bay by 1 bay,
classically influenced dwelling based on the ell-plan and has a hip roof. The main
block measures 20 x 50 feet and the ell, 20 x 40 feet. The facade faces east and
has a central entrance.

One hundred thousand bricks were used in the construction of the house. The
brick is laid in common bond. The first story walls are laid 3 courses deep and the
second story, 2 courses deep. Interior wall partitions are made of brick. The
foundation is made of cut stone laid 3 feet wide and 3 feet high in the front.

The facade entrance is flanked by wooden panels, surmounted by side lights and
an 8-pane transom. The door is paneled and the entire entrance has plain, narrow
board surrounds. Most of the windows are broken and boarded up, but the ones that
are located in the ell are lover ] sash. Based on historical photos, it appears that
the windows were 2 by 2 sash. There is a double window, above the facade entrance,
at the second story. All windows have narrow plain board surrounds and a one-course
wide brick lintel.

A wide, wooden cornice has double brackets across the facade and at the corners
" of the main block; single brackets adorn the remaining elevations and the ell.

The facade has undergone at least one porch alteration. The existing porch,
although in a deteriorating condition, runs the length of the facade and is 1 story
with a hipped roof and supported by wooden Doric columns. A c. 1920 photo reveals a
l-story, hipped roof porch covering just the entrance bay and featured scroll work
ornamentation and latticingat the base. A late 1800's photo reveals that originally
the house did not have a facade porch.

A dilapidated shed enclosure covers the rear, west elevation of the house and
part of the south elevation of the ell. There is an entrance into the west end of the
south elevation of the ell which consists of a paneled door with a transom.

There are 3 interior brick chimneys with corbeled caps: one at the north elevation
and one at the south elevation of the main block, and the third is located in the ell.

Interior: The house is a central hallway, four room plan with the kitchen located in

the ell. The facade entrance opens into a small anteroom from which a stairway leads

to the upper story. A central hallway leads through, past the stairway, to a rear door
which opens onto the back porch. There are small fireplaces in each room. The fireplace
in the kitchen was never used except to accomodate a cast iron cookstove.

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE . : . - -

The William Wilson Ashby House is significant because of its association with
the Ashby family, early settlers in Garrett County. It is also significant as one
of the few fine late 19th century brick houses in Garrett County.

History and Support

In 1875, William Wilson Ashby employed a Hugh Smiley of Augusta County, VA. to
assist him with the construction of a new house to accomodate his large family of a
wife, 7 sons and 3 daughters. A nearby 2 room log house with a sleeping loft, was
not sufficient enough to hold the Ashby family (Ashby, p. 28).

It is interesting to note that Mr. Smiley recommended the construction of a brick
,use in a land where lumber was plentiful and with the nearby availability of an
Ashby family sawmill. Somehow, Hugh Smiley convinced William Wilson Ashby that a house
built of handmade brick would be cheaper than a wood one of comparable size. The
construction was accomplished at a cost of $1000 to Mr. Ashby (Ashby, p. 30).

Hugh Smiley was assisted by various members of the Ashby family in the construction
of the house. Prior to Mr. Smiley's arrival at the site in April 1876, the Ashby family
cleared a half acre of land, across the road from the house, for the.brickyard and cut
25 cords of rock oak wood for the kiln. @Iret Ashby notes in his book, The Ashby Story,
that even though coal was available a 100 yards from the brickyard, no one made the
association of its usefullness in fueling the kiln). The first story of the house
was constructed in 1876 and the second story was completed in 1877 (Ashby, p. 28).

110,000 bricks were made from yellow clay in a nearby clay bank. Mr. Smiley
concocked a horse-powered wooden clay mixer and double brick molds. Mortar for the
bricks, consisting of burnt limestone, was also made on location. (Ashby, p. 28-29).

100,000 brickds were used in the construction of the house and the remaining
10,000 were offered for sale. (Ashby, p. 29 and 30).

William Wilson Ashby was the grandson of William Wilton Ashby, one of the earliest
settlers in Garrett County. In 1774, William Wilton and his wife, Sarah Williams came
with his uncle, John Ashby and 43 other pioneers from the south branch of the Potomac,
to a site near present day Gortner in Garrett County. They were on their way to
Zantucky, but due to the ensuing revolution, they were advised by a scout to remain in

tern Maryland. (Ashby, p. 3-6).

In 1836, the tract of land on which the Ashby brick housenow stands was acquired
by William Wilson and Thomas Wilson Ashby, brothers. (They were 2 sons of triplets

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
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born to William Williams and Mary Wilson Ashby in 1809) (Ashby, p. 22).

William Wilson Ashby died in 1902. The house, now owned by Dorsey Ashby, has
remained in .Ashby family hands since that time.
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Oakland, MD:WV Quad. William Wilson Ashby House .
Crellin West side, approx. 1 mile S of Crellin
7.5 Minute Series Crellin-Underwood Rd.
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